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             19/05/2021 
 

Points requiring clarifications in relation to the RFP-94  
 

S# Clarification/ Information Required Comments 
1.  
 

 

We understand that business requirements for 5 
functions (Company Registration, Filing and 
Compliance, Licensing, Regulatory Approvals, Allied 
Processes) are already completed. Has full BPR for all 
key processes within these 5 functions completed, 
detailed technical specs defined and signed-off by all 
relevant stakeholders? 
 

BPR of five key functions have been completed, however 

detailed technical specs are not available (this will not be the 

responsibility of the consultant) and sign-off by relevant 

stakeholders is in process. 

2.  
 

What additional work is expected for the existing 5 
functional areas? Have any RFPs been floated to start 
technical execution? 
 

RFP has been floated. PMO capability for the 

execution/implementation/acceptance of the selected 

technical solution is required from the Consultant. 

3.  
 

For 3 additional functions (Supervision, Enforcement, 
Administrative & support), would there be some 
prioritization of processes for BPR given the breadth of 
the functions? 
 

Supervision and Enforcement are high priority. 

4.  
 

RFP refers to ‘Current assessment report completed in 
2020’ and ‘Benchmarking report completed in 2020’. 
When would these reports be shared? 

As soon as the Consultant firm is onboarded. 

5.  Are there existing resources already envisioned to be a 
part of the PMO (e.g., team which carried out the work 
for 5 original functional areas)? If yes, what is the size 
of the team? 

SECP resources will be available to provide support to the 
Consultant’s PMO team however SECP resources shall not be 
considered as full time PMO resources. Support team size is of 
three people. 

6.  What is the duration of support expected from the 
Consultant? While different activities may complete at different times, the 

consultant is expected to be part of the LEAP program till the 
last transformative intervention is 
completed/implemented/accepted. At a high level it is 
anticipated that the program should be completed within 18 
months 
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7.  3.1.3 Review and leverage existing Current Assessment 
report completed in 2020. What does the current 
assessment report entail? Does it provide any insights 
or overview of the existing laws, rules, regulations and 
systems (as required in section 3.1.1 to 3.1.2)? 

Provide the details of existing business functions, systems and 
architecture but not cover the laws/rules/regulations. 

8.  
3.1.4 Review and leverage existing Benchmarking report 
completed in 2020. What does the benchmarking 
report entail? Does it provide BPR/ improvement 
opportunities in other functions of SECP? 

If answer to above is yes, how was the benchmarking 
conducted and what methodology was followed for 
benchmarking of the functions with local as well as 
international best practices? 

Benchmarking report carries a view of certain similar 
regulators of the world. It sheds light on how those regulators 
operate and, in some instances, it also carries details around 
how they transformed over years. In essence, it provides a 
perspective on how things can be done to improve overall 
services offered by the regulator. 

Details on methodology used to create the report will be 
shared after onboarding the consultant. 

9.   Current assessment report 
 Benchmarking report 

In relation to above points against requirement in 
section 3.1.3 and 3.1.4, is the consulting firm required to 
validate the current assessment and benchmarking 
reports? Or is the expectation is to leverage these 
reports only during the BPR for in-scope functions? 

The consultant is expected to leverage these reports during the 
BPR for in-scope functions. 

10.  3.1.5 Review and finalize available business 
requirement documents (As-Is & To-Be) completed in 
2020. What do these business requirement documents 
entail? Are these As-Is and To-Be process 
documentation for functions as mentioned in the RFP 
or are these business requirement documents 
identifying functional specifications for new systems 
required to be implemented? 

It covers the As-Is and To-Be requirements of business 
functions but do not identify the functional specifications for 
new systems required to be implemented. 

11.  3.1.5 Review and finalize available business 
requirement documents (As-Is & To-Be) completed in 
2020. What do these business requirement documents 
entail? Are these As-Is and To-Be process 
documentation for functions as mentioned in the RFP 
or are these business requirement documents 

Same as above 
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identifying functional specifications for new systems 
required to be implemented? 

12.  Review and finalize available business requirement 
documents (As-Is & To-Be) completed in 2020. What is 
the expectation in relation to the role of the consulting 
firm for finalizing these business requirement 
documents? Are they required to review and validate 
those which may also result in identification of new 
business requirements or will it only involve developing 
the RFPs for new systems based on these business 
requirement documents, discussing and finalizing the 
same with the vendors? 

The expectation from the consultant is to review, validate and 
update the As-Is and To-Be documents (if any change is 
required). The RFP for the Company Registry solution is 
already developed and published. Any additional required 
RFPs based on the validation and/or discovery of new 
transformative opportunities originating from BPR or 
otherwise will be the responsibility of the Consultant.   

13.  3.1.9 Review and update the existing Digital, IS and IT 
strategies created in 2020, derive actions plans for 
adaption and ensure compliance/alignment to those 
strategies/action plans. 
Implementation of the updated digital, IT and IS 
strategies may be a long-term initiative requiring 2-3 
years for implementation (depending on the action 
points identified). What is the expected time period for 
this project? Will the consulting firm be required to 
perform PMO functions till all the action points are 
implemented and complied with? 

The anticipated time period for the program is up to 18 
months. However, every bidder may propose a different 
optimized work plan and a timeline depending upon their own 
methodology/resource modelling/estimation of work involved 
for covering the entire scope as set out in the RFP. 

The PMO function will be required to manage all interventions 
aligned to the scope of this RFP. 

14.  3.2.5 Provide post implementation audit 

What are the expectations in relation to deliverable for 
this requirement? Are the consulting firms required to 
provide a review report on the implemented aspects/ 
action points, identifying deficiencies, if any. 

As mentioned in S. No 7 above, this will again depend 
on the project lifecycle and expectations around project 
timelines. 

The Consultant is expected to manage each implementation 
through its PMO first of all. Once every implementation is 
complete, the consultant will be expected to provide a review 
report which may lead to acceptance or rework by the 
implementing partner till acceptance. 

15.  3.2.7 Provide final acceptance certification based on the 
approved scope for all systems being implemented or to 
be implemented under LEAP 

Currently the Company Registry system is under procurement. 
Consultant would be required to manage the implementation 
of that system till acceptance. In addition to that, as a result of 
consultancy and activities like but not limited to BPR, any 
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Can you provide us a listing or details of the systems 
being implemented under the LEAP programme? 
Further, are all the systems to be implemented already 
identified? If yes, please also provide a listing of 
systems to be implemented. 

It would help us in scoping our work and related effort 
estimation with respect to timelines and resource 
requirements. 

further implementations associated to listed functional areas 
(Registration, Licensing, Compliance, Regulatory approvals, 
Supervision and Enforcement and Allied processes) will need 
to be managed by the consultant till acceptance. Therefore, 
consultant would be required to eventually certify the 
acceptance of all systems that have been implemented as part 
of LEAP and through its PMO. 

 

 
16.  4.6 BPR for the nominated functional areas 

The timelines mentioned for completion of BPR for 
nominated areas seems very difficult as there are 
approx. 160+ processes mentioned in the annexure to 
the RFP. Can the timelines for this deliverable 
reconsidered? 

As mentioned in the RFP, BPR for five functional areas is 
completed. It is expected that number of processes which will 
require BPR is about 60 – 70 which will in turn reduced to 8 – 
10 journeys after BPR. 

 
17.  4.8 – 4.10 Throughout project lifecycle 

What is the expected duration of project lifecycle? Up to 18 months anticipated – dependent upon proposed 
methodology, resource model etc of the bidder 

18.  4.10 Advisory and consultancy services 
What are the expectations in relation to the deliverable 
for advisory and consultancy services? What does this 
requirement entail? 

Advisory and Consultancy relevant to all aspects of the digital 
transformation program for the specified functional areas. 

19.  Annexure-B - Undertaking regarding- Requirement for 
making project team members available at the project 
site 

What is the expectation in relation to team availability 
on project site?  

Requirement would be on-site presence of project team (PMO 
in particular), however virtual presence would be acceptable in 
case of travel/government restrictions. 

20.  availability of the project team- Clarification is also 
requested on whether engagement through video 
conferences would be workable since international team 
members may not be able to travel to Pakistan given the 
ongoing Pandemic and travel restrictions. 

Requirement would be on-site presence of project team (PMO 
in particular), however virtual presence would be acceptable in 
case of travel/government restrictions. 
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21.  What is the expectation for availability of the team on-
site as our lead with required expertise may be based 
out of Karachi and we will also be deploying our 
international experts on the project? 

The project lead and international experts would be expected 
to be available on-site when required however virtual presence 
would be acceptable for other times and in case of travel 
restrictions. 

 
22.  Proposal submission date: 

a. Given the current Covid situation, will it be 
acceptable to meet the proposal submission 
deadline by e-mail, with hard copies to follow by 
courier a few days later and dependent on courier 
delivery abilities? 

b. When can we receive your template for the financial 
bid, as stated in the RfP document? 

 

a. Acceptable. The hardcopies can arrive a few days later 
as long as the softcopy submissions are made in time 

b. Provided through the FP Link on the RFP page under 
Procurement Section of Karandaaz website 

23.  Review of existing documents (current state 
assessment, strategy and business requirements 
documents): 
a. Is the current state assessment report completed 

and accepted by SECP? 
b. Has the strategy document been completed and 

finalized or is it still work-in-progress and needs to 
be completed? 

                                               i.     If work-in-progress, how much has been 
completed? 

                                              ii.     If completed, is there a procedure to 
document any new findings and/or gaps identified by 
us? 
c. Is the cloud strategy part of the IT strategy 

document? If it is a separate document, is it 
aligned with the IT strategy? 

   i.     Is any type of cloud infrastructure currently in use 
or being planned? 
 ii.     Is SECP open to Public Cloud (such as Azure , 

AWS, Ali baba, Digital Ocean, Google)? 
 iii.     Are there any restrictions for data residency? 

a. Yes 
b. Completed 

ii. The consultant will be expected to make 
recommendations based on new findings and/or gaps 
identified and update the existing document 
accordingly 
 

c. Yes 
i- Nothing in use really except for a temporary 

solution which is in transition to on-prem at the 
time of documenting this response. Cloud 
infrastructure is yet to be planned in alignment 
with the final cloud strategy based on the 
recommendation/s by the Consultant 

ii- Public cloud would not be a preference. Private 
Cloud hosted from within Pakistan is more likely to 
be the acceptable option 

iii- Yes – Within Pakistan 
iv- To a limited extent within the strategy. Consultant 

to further explore and finalize 
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         iv.     Have key uses cases been defined for cloud? 
d. Has a transformation and change strategy been 

developed, as referred to in the SOW? 
e. What percentage of the business requirements 

document is perceived to have been completed 
and was this done in coordination with the SECP 
team? 

       i.     Have these business requirements documents 
been completed on the basis of revised processes 
and, if so, have the revised processes been 
mapped and approved by SECP? 

         ii.     Is there a requirement to validate the 
business requirements documents and, if so, is 
there a process to document any new findings or 
gaps? 

f. Will there be access to all the raw data and 
information that was made available to create the 
existing / draft documents? 

g. If needed, will the previous consultants be 
accessible for discussions, to gain clarity on their 
output / documents? 

 

d. Strategy documents completed have been mentioned in 
the RFP. Other required as per consultant’s proposal to 
meet RFP requirements must be taken in to account by 
the consultant.  

e. Business requirements (As-Is and To-Be) of five 
functional areas have been completed by SECP team 
and rest of the documentation to be prepared by the 
Consultants. 

i- Documents have been completed on 
the basis of revised processes and 
undergoing approval process 

ii- Yes, validate, review and update is 
expected from consultant and the 
procedure will be recommended by 
the Consultant. 

f. Access to any data and/or information will be granted 
strictly on need basis and following full data security 
compliance protocols to be agreed to by the selected 
consultant after onboarding  

g. No, SECP will provide the clarification, if required.  

24.  BPR: 
a. Do as-is process maps exist for the identified 

processes under the mentioned 3 functional areas? 
                                               i.     To what level have are existing as-is 

processes mapped? 
                                              ii.      been done previously either by SECP or 

by the previous consultant? 
 

Yes, operational manuals for first two functional areas are 
available for third, As-Is documents, are available. 

i- Functional and operational level details have been 
covered. 

ii- By SECP 

25.  SOC: 
a. Has a business case been developed and approved 

for the SOC? 
b. The RFP requires an assessment of the existing 

SOC. Is it possible to provide details on the 
technologies being used for SOC? 

 i.     What SIEM is being used? 

a. Yes 
b. There is no SOC currently implemented 

i- LOG 360 Manage Engine 
ii- No response included 
iii- Manual 
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ii.     Is it only limited to monitoring currently or 
response is also included? 
iii.     Is response manual or automated? What is current 
team size and location? 
iv.     Is there a specific information security framework 
or security standard that SECP must adhere to? If so, 
are details available. If there are no mandatory 
requirements, are there any specific standards (e.g., ISO 
27001, SOC2) that the management has in mind? 
 

iv- SECP is adhering to ISO 27001. Any other 
standard may be recommended by the 
Consultant  

26.  Bid documents for systems required: 
a. Has SECP pr-qualified vendors? 
b. If pre-qualification has not been done as yet, will 

procurement be under a 2-stage process or single 
stage of issuing and publishing the bid documents 
with no pre-qualification? 

 

No pre-qualifications have been carried out for any RFPs yet 
to be documented. Consultant to firstly identify the 
automation opportunities and then create the RFP. Karandaaz 
procurement to run the procurement process as per 
Karandaaz policy. Procurement approach to be discussed on 
case by case basis. 

27.  Change management: 
a. Ref article 3.2.6, does the 360 degree change of 

people include hiring new resources? 
 

No 

28.  Qualification criteria: 
a. Article 7 under section 6 of the RfP document states 

that firms “based in India and/or Israel are not 
eligible to participate in the RfP”. While we are an 
American firm with our Head Office in USA, we do 
have an office in India, essentially for business in 
India. Our India office, however, will have 
absolutely nothing to do with this proposal or 
engagement. Are we still eligible to participate and 
qualify? 

 

A company with U.S origin but presence in India and/or Israel 
doesn’t make it ineligible as long as the Indian/Israeli office or 
any member of such office or any individual who is a national 
of India and/or Israel has no involvement/interest in the 
project whatsoever.  

29.  What current IT systems does SECP have? A system 
inventory with brief descriptions of systems will help 
greatly towards measuring current levels of digitization 
at SECP and in scoping our proposal.  
 

Such details can only be provided to the contracted partner. 
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30.  Ref: 3.1.5. - What is the expectation from Review and 
finalize available business requirement documents (As-
Is & To-Be) completed in 2020 
a. Does AS-IS require revalidation? 
b. Does To-Be from previous exercise in 2020 is in 

approved state?  
 

a. Yes 
b. Undergoing approval process 

31.  Ref: 3.1.6 - Does any AS-IS documentation exist for the 
referred functional areas? Yes, operational manuals for first two functional areas are 

available for third, As-Is documents, are available. 

 
32.  Ref: 3.1.6 - Does the BPR activity need to be performed 

while remaining within the bounds of regulatory 
framework of SECP or expectation is to identify 
organizational design issues, technical review, 
regulatory and policy compliance thresholds / other 
issues, OR to challenge why certain processes exist or 
methodologies are employed by SECP that may require 
legal and regulatory changes?    

Focus would be to remain within the bounds of existing 
regulatory framework of SECP as no immediate changes are 
planned/anticipated in legislative framework as a result of the 
digital transformation program. However, any critical 
opportunities or highly viable alternatives identified must be 
documented and presented by the consultant for 
consideration. 

33.  Referring to the IT, IS and Cloud strategy prepared last 
year in 2020, were they approved by the relevant SECP 
stakeholders? 

Yes 

34.  Referring to the 2020 assessment report. Does the As-is 
part of report require revalidation?  Yes 

35.  Ref: 3.1.9 – What does ‘ensure compliance/ alignment’ 
mean? Compliance issues can be identified but ensuring 
compliance can only be done through third party IT 
Audits and SECP.  

For 3.1.9 it means that existing strategies must be reviewed 
and updated if necessary and then put to full use by 
documenting a thorough action plan for the strategies and 
following it in the form of implementation/s etc 

36.  Ref: 3.1.6 - Why is the BPR being limited to nominated 
functional areas? How does this align with the overall 
digital transformation program and 10 outcomes/ 
objectives listed in “Background’ section 

BPR of the five functional areas have been done considering 
the 10 outcomes/objectives, it is expected that consultant 
should perform BPR of the nominated functional areas 
considering the same outcomes/objectives. 
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37.  Apart from supervisory, enforcement and 
administrative & support functions if a dire need is felt 
for assessment and/or BPR of any other functional area 
(in part or as a whole), would that be allowed?   

 Yes, subject to SECP’s approval. 

38.  Who would be responsible for the final acceptance 
criteria(s) of all the work that is to be completed under 
LEAP?  

Consultant to create and propose for SECP to agree and 
approve. Once the criteria is in place, Consultant would be 
responsible to ensure that it is fully met and issue an 
acceptance certificate accordingly 

39.  Are any interventions/initiatives currently underway as 
part of LEAP? Also, any such intervention/initiative 
planned in future outside the purview of the proposed 
PMO?  

Consultant is expected to provide PMO for all 
implementations under the LEAP program associated to the 
listed functional areas (Registration, Licensing, Compliance, 
Regulatory approvals, Supervision and Enforcement and 
Allied processes). 

 
40.  Will suggested changes to regulatory mechanisms be 

allowed to be put for recommendations?  Yes. Consultant would be encouraged to propose best possible 
solutions/improvements. Consideration/Approval/Rejection 
shall remain SECP prerogative. 

41.  Is any specific attempt currently underway to 
implement XBRL in any functionary of SECP? Has any 
such attempt being made in the recent past? 

Yes, one taxonomy has been developed by ICAP. 

42.  To facilitate digital transformation is there any scope 
for the following: 
 
Re-imagining the customer journey for G2C, G2G and 
G2B customers  

Yes - Expected 

43.  Establishment of digital channels like 
mobile/portals/social media platforms to cater for 
customer interactions and transactions  

Yes - Expected 

44.  Business models to support points A) and B) 
There are no points labelled as A,B,C etc in the query list. 
Assuming A and B are the above two points (42 ad 43), the 
answer is Yes 



10 
 

45.  Digitization of SECP information and artefacts like 
internal documents  and external customer documents  Yes - Expected 

46.  Stream lining of data sets to support RPA and AI use 
cases such as conversational AI Yes - Expected 

47.  e2e digitalisation of all internal processes to support 
points A to C The query is too open ended and unclear 

48.  Establish a new operating model and work practices 
fostered around agility, collaboration and innovation  Yes – the consultant may propose 

49.  A comprehensive change management programme to 
ensure customers and employees adopt digital practices Yes - Expected 

End of Document 


